
 

 
 

CITY OF TUKWILA 

PLANNING COMMISSION (PC) 
AGENDA 

December 14, 2023 - 6:30 PM 
    

 

To Participate in the Virtual Meeting at 6:30 pm: 

By Phone: Dial +1 253-292-9750, Access 779 253 241# 

Online: To join this meeting virtually please click on Planning Commission on the 

12/14/23 calendar date on the events page located at 

https://www.tukwilawa.gov/events/  

 For Technical Support during the meeting, you may call 1-206-433-7155 

Join in-person at: 6200 Southcenter Blvd, Council Chambers, Tukwila, WA. 98188  

 Start Time 

I. Call to Order 6:30 

II. Roll Call  6:32 

III. Amendment of the Agenda (if necessary) 6:33 

IV. Adoption of Minutes (11/9/23)  6:33 

V. General Public Comments (acknowledge written comments received) 6:36 

VI. Old Business (none)  

VII. New Business   

1. Draft Housing Element - Briefing  6:40 

2. Bylaw Amendment: Modification of Term End Dates – Info Memo 7:50 

 VIII. Director’s Report  8:00 

 IX. Adjournment 8:10  

 
General Public Comments:  Persons wishing to provide general comments on any non-public hearing, planning-

related topic may submit their written comment to BoardsComms@TukwilaWA.gov.  Comments received 

before 5:00 p.m. the day before the Planning Commission meeting will be forwarded to Commissioners 

prior to their meeting. Materials received after that time will be forwarded prior to the next meeting.   

 

Reminder:  Staff is available to address Planning Commissioner questions regarding packets anytime – we 

encourage Commissioners to call or email staff by noon on the Tuesday before the Commission meeting 

date.  Please call or email Commission Secretary Wynetta Bivens, at 206-431-3654 or 

Wynetta.Bivens@TukwilaWA.gov to be connected with the appropriate staff member. Thank you! 

 

tel:+12532929750,,779253241# 
https://www.tukwilawa.gov/events/
mailto:BoardsComms@TukwilaWA.gov
mailto:Wynetta.Bivens@TukwilaWA.gov




 

 

CITY OF TUKWILA  

PLANNING COMMISSION (PC) 

MINUTES 
 

Date: November 9, 2023 
Time: 6:30 p.m. 

Location: Hybrid Meeting - via Microsoft Teams / Public, In-Person attendance, Council Chambers, 

6200 Southcenter Blvd, Tukwila, WA 98188 

 

Call to Order 

Chair Sidhu called the Tukwila Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Roll Call 
The PC Secretary took roll call. 

Present:  Chair Apneet Sidhu; Vice Chair Sharon Mann; Commissioners Louise Strander, 
Dennis Martinez, Martin Probst, and Ann Durant 

 
Excused Absence: Alexandria Teague 

Staff: Director Nora Gierloff, American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP), Department 
of Community Development (DCD); Long Range Planning Manager Nancy Eklund, 
AICP, DCD; and PC Secretary Wynetta Bivens 

Amendment of the Agenda (if necessary) 
No changes to the agenda were requested. 

Approval of Minutes 
Commissioner Mann moved to adopt the 10/26/23 Minutes. Commissioner Martinez seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Written General Public Comments 
No submittals. 

Unfinished Business 

None. 

New Business 

1. Shoreline and Natural Environment Elements - Briefing 

 

Nancy Eklund, AICP, Long Range Planning Manager, DCD walked through the staff memo for the 

material to be discussed.  She stated that the Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that 

Comprehensive Plans address specific goals as described in RCW 36.70A.020.  The three goals that 

were discussed in the Shoreline and Natural Environment elements pertained to environmental 

protection, climate change and resiliency, and management of shorelines of the state.   

 

1



PC Meeting 

11/9/23  

Page 2 

 

 

She noted that the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space (PROS) Element, which was parallel to the PROS 

Plan adopted by the City in 2020 and used by the Parks Department to manage its area of responsibility. 

The Shoreline Element is also largely parallel to the goals and policies defined in those for the City’s 

Shoreline Master Program (SMP).   

 

Shoreline Element Review  

Staff walked through the document, noting that changes to the element were those found to be 

consistent with the changes in the SMP, and should be acceptable.  She noted minor format and content 

changes but stated that they would need to be approved by the Washington Department of Ecology.  

Commission members asked several clarifying questions, which were addressed by staff. 

 

Natural Environment Element Review  

Staff discussed the reasons for the changes in the element, noting that staff was looking for 

opportunities to pare down redundancies in the text, fix references to processes and nomenclature no 

longer current, and the add language mandated by state and regional policies or local practice.    

 

• PC Recommendations - and/or questions: 

- PC had questions about striking language that addressed community input (p. 94).  The decision 

was to leave language as it was proposed, but to ensure that somewhere we acknowledge 

community contributions to the betterment of the environment. 

- PC had questions on Goal 2, page 104 – why did we remove the word “watercourses” – should 

that word be replaced?  Staff to provide more information. 

- PC had questions regarding mitigation fees; staff clarified there was no fee charged for 

improvement of the natural environmental project (only trees, which has a fee-in lieu option; or 

for impacts that the developer needs to show how they will impact). 

- PC asked that the language “Provide technical assistance to developers and encourage the use of 

such techniques for stormwater management” in deleted Policy 8.1 be retained.  [Staff later found 

same language in Policy 2.2: “Provide individualized education and technical support to 

residential property owners and general guidance to businesses regarding environmental 

stewardship and climate change resiliency strategies.”].  It was also noted that developers need 

to comply with the King County surface water design manual and receive feedback.  Most cities 

have websites that provide permitting-type information, and the public is always able to call 

staff for more information. 

- Goal 10 (p. 113) and its policies have been moved to Utilities. Staff will return with the 

Utilities element that includes these relocated policies at a future meeting.     

- PC comment about typo on page 124, Policy 15.7 [Staff has corrected]. 

- Policy 15.9, make font size consistent, page 124 [Staff has corrected]. 

 

Next Steps 

- Housing will be the agenda topic for the December 14th meeting. 

- Land Use will be the agenda topic for the January 11th meeting. 
 

Director’s Report 
- Director Gierloff noted that she sent the PC a link on some legislative item(s) that the City 

Council approved. 
- It was noted that the ordinance extending the PC terms to March passed, PC have some “bonus” 

months added to their terms, then the terms will go back to four-year terms. 
- The question was raised regarding extending the term for the current chair until terms expire in 

2



PC Meeting 

11/9/23  

Page 3 

 

 

March 2024 and a new chair assumes the position afterwards. The PC were unanimously in 
consensus that Chair Sidhu would continue as chair until terms expire in March 2024. Staff will 
provide some language in December to use in voting to make it official. 

 
Adjourned  

Commissioner Probst moved to adjourn; Commissioner Martinez seconded the motion. All were in favor 

of adjourning.   

 

The Planning Commission adjourned at 8:50 p. m. 

 

 

Submitted by:  Wynetta Bivens 

  PC Secretary  

 

3





 
 

 

TO:  Tukwila Planning Commission 

FROM:  Nora Gierloff, AICP, DCD Director 

BY:  Nancy Eklund, AICP & Neil Tabor, AICP 

DATE: December 14, 2023    

SUBJECT: Draft Housing Element - Briefing 
 
ISSUE 
 
This agenda item is to brief the Planning Commission at their December 14, 2023, meeting on 
the proposed update of the Housing Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
UPDATES IN HOUSING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Tukwila’s Comprehensive Plan Update will be reviewed at the State, Regional, and County levels 
to ensure that it complies with all requirements of these three bodies before being voted on for 
adoption by the City Council. Each review body has required components and policy language 
that must be included in the update to be approved by the reviewing body. Staff has been 
working to integrate new requirements into Planning Commission presentations and the 
Element updates to ensure compliance.  
 
In addition to many of the changes in policy updates required since the last comprehensive plan 
update, many new legislative actions have been taken at the state level that should be 
supported in the comprehensive plan update. Some of the most pertinent to housing include: 
 

• HB 1110: Allowing middle housing in residential zones; 

• HB 1220: Supporting emergency shelters and housing through local planning and 
development regulations;.  

• HB 1337: Reducing limitations on Accessory Dwelling Units; and  

• HB 1293: Streamlining development regulations.  
 
Major update areas related to required land use and housing policies include: 
 

• Racially disparate impacts; 

• Emphasizing housing growth around transit and regional centers; 

• Housing affordable to different AMI levels; and  

• Updating the design review process 

4



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Draft Housing Element - Briefing  

December 14, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
Examples of King County policies around these topics can be seen below: 
 

• H-9   Collaborate with populations most disproportionately impacted by housing cost 
burden in developing, implementing, and monitoring strategies that achieve the goals of 
this chapter. 
 

• H-10   Adopt intentional, targeted actions that repair harms to Black, Indigenous, and 
other People of Color households from past and current racially exclusive and 
discriminatory land use and housing practices. Promote equitable outcomes in 
partnership with communities most impacted. 
 

• H-11   Adopt policies, incentives, strategies, actions, and regulations that increase the 
supply of long-term income-restricted housing for extremely low-, very low-, and low-
income households and households with special needs. 

 
• H-14   Prioritize the use of local and regional resources (e.g., funding, surplus property) 

for income-restricted housing, particularly for extremely low-income households, 
populations with special needs, and others with disproportionately greater housing 
needs. Consider projects that promote access to opportunity, anti-displacement, and 
wealth building for Black, Indigenous, and People of Color communities to support 
implementation of policy H-10. 

 
• H-16   Expand the supply and range of housing types, including affordable units, at 

densities sufficient to maximize the benefits of transit investments throughout the 
county. 
 

• H-17   Support the development and preservation of income-restricted affordable 
housing that is within walking distance to planned or existing high-capacity and frequent 
transit. 

 
For more information on housing element requirements please see the 10/26/23 Planning 
Commission Packet. 
 
 
Attachments: 

• Draft 2024 Housing Element 

• 2015 Housing Element  

5



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

Housing Element  
WHAT YOU WILL FIND IN THIS CHAPTER: 

• Estimates of current and future housing needs; 

• Policies to preserve and improve the existing housing stock; encourage new housing that 

meets the full spectrum of the community’s needs; and develop thriving, equitable 

neighborhoods; and 

• Strategies to encourage housing that is affordable to all income levels and provides for 

the needs of all current and future residents of Tukwila. 

Purpose 
This Housing element describes how Tukwila’s housing needs will be satisfied through 2044. 

This element is based on a detailed analysis of Tukwila’s housing needs contained in the 

Housing Background Report; housing projections determined by a joint committee including 

King County and its cities; and community engagement input.  

The goals and policies seek to guide City actions related to housing, including decisions related 

to development regulations, affordable housing, and other programs. In the coming years, the 

City will need to plan for growth while ensuring the existing and future housing stock serves the 

changing needs of Tukwila’s population, reducing barriers that prevent low- and moderate-

income households from living near their work or transit, and preserving housing that is 

affordably priced. Tukwila’s future must include thriving, equitable neighborhoods where 

everyone has the opportunity to live in a safe, healthy, and affordable home in the “City of 

opportunity and the community of choice”. 

Issues 
In developing the goals and policies for Tukwila’s Housing Element, these issues were identified. 

Housing Stock 

• Building age: Almost half of Tukwila housing units are more than fifty years old, and 

most units were constructed between 1960 and 1980. As of 2023, only a tenth of the 

existing units were constructed since 2000. Older buildings can be more expensive to 

maintain, especially for cost-burdened residents. That said, if well-maintained and 

protected from displacement, these units offer a naturally-occurring affordable housing 

reservoir. 

6

https://makers.sharepoint.us/:w:/s/UDCP/EaWkd2XX_7NMs7TjdhEh4ZABPAszxzDaSN3EOVJsCDYfKw?e=7LMyu2
Wynetta
Text Box
Attachment A



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

• Housing size: Housing units available for rent tend to consist of studios and 1- and 2-

bedroom units, while ownership units tend to have 3- or 4-bedrooms. However, renter 

households tend to be larger than homeowner households, creating a mismatch 

between need and availability.  

• Vacancy rates: Tukwila has very low vacancy rates. In 2021, the rental vacancy rate was 

1.3% and the ownership vacancy rate was 1.4%. Low vacancy rates indicate a lack of 

housing supply, which makes it more difficult for existing residents and prospective 

renters and buyers to identify housing that might best suit them. 

  

Home Ownership Options and Middle Housing 

Having a range of housing types to choose from facilitates home ownership among a wider 

range of households. Homeownership can offer greater stability and the opportunity to build 

wealth, as well as strengthen resilience against displacement.  

Currently, most of Tukwila’s housing stock consists of older single-family homes, and 

apartments in large multi-family developments. These limited options do not accommodate 

residents in all stages of life, including young adults, multigenerational families, older adults 

hoping to “age in place,” and older adults looking to downsize. Single family houses, the only 

housing type allowed on most residential lots in Tukwila, are also generally the most expensive 

type of housing to purchase, and develop per unit, meaning new units are financially out of 

reach for many households. 

“Middle housing” includes duplexes, townhouses, cottages, courtyard apartments, and other 

building types that fall between single family detached houses and high-density apartments. 

Middle housing tends to be more affordable to build and offers a greater variety of layouts and 

sizes that are better suited to the range of household types in Tukwila. Expanding the areas in 

which middle housing is allowed could help create new “starter homes” and offer the 

advantages of homeownership to a new generation.  

7



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

   

Housing Projections 

The Puget Sound Regional Council – the regional planning organization that develops growth 

projections – estimates that Tukwila will need a total of 14,239 housing units by 2044, or 5,045 

more than the City’s current stock (9,194 units). To achieve this growth, roughly 240 new units 

will need to be developed every year. Historically, there has been a large gap between the City’s 

growth target and number of housing units actually constructed in the target period, although 

housing production increased since 2018, partly due to modified development regulations in the 

Southcenter urban center, and new development along Tukwila International Boulevard. Due to 

the slow growth, the City is recommended to adopt “reasonable measures” to accelerate 

housing production, potentially including changes to zoning, permitting procedures, or other 

measures.  

Analysis of Tukwila’s current zoning shows that the City has a total capacity for 7,475 new 

housing units within its zones that allow residential development and from anticipated housing 

units from projects in the development pipeline. However antiquated development regulations 

and extended permitting timelines have created barriers to new construction. 

Affordable Housing Targets and Anti-Displacement Concerns 

Under the Growth Management Act, cities and counties work together to plan for a sufficient 

supply of housing affordable to all income levels. Since 2021, cities and counties have 

coordinated to identify equitable individual housing targets that will meet regional housing 

needs. Tukwila’s targets are shown in Table 1 below. 

Income band 

Share of 

Existing Units 

Share of Existing 

Households 

New Unit  

Target Share 

Needed 

Housing Units 

Extremely low (0-30% AMI) 4% 23% 21% 1367*  

Very low (30-50% AMI) 26% 19% 4% 274 

Low (50-80% AMI) 35% 16% 3% 214 

Moderate (80-100% AMI) 18% 12% 19% 610 

Higher (100-120% AMI) 10% 
30% 

11% 692 

High (>120% AMI) 7% 51% 3,343 

8



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

With a significant supply of relatively affordable housing present in Tukwila, the City is already 

contributing significantly to countywide affordability. It is important to note that newly 

developed units lower than 120% AMI can be allocated to the >120% AMI level for target 

purposes. 

As new homes are created, it will be important to act to reduce impacts on vulnerable 

communities in Tukwila. These impacts may include displacement of naturally occurring 

affordable housing (NOAHs) and cultural anchors, such as businesses and places of worship. 

Displacement is most likely to occur in areas where zoning allows higher intensity development 

relative to other parts of the City (e.g., along Tukwila International Boulevard), and where 

vulnerable communities such as low-income residents, recent immigrants, or non-White 

communities are present.  

This element includes policies intended to prevent displacement, preserve and maintain older, 

more affordable housing, and strengthen links with members of vulnerable communities. 

Goals, Policies, and Implementation Strategies 
The following goals and policies intend to help Tukwila establish vibrant neighborhoods and 

encourage new housing, while maintaining affordable housing and meeting the needs of low-

income and special-needs households. Each goal is followed by a list of related policies. 

Implementation strategies are included in three groups; for Goals 3.1 and 3.2, Goals 3.3 and 3.4, 

and Goal 3.5. 

[[[changes to policies in the 2015 plan are noted in this draft]]] 

GOAL 3.1 – Support housing growth consistent with regional targets.  

(Revised 3.1) 

3.1.1 Ensure zoned capacity is sufficient and encourages housing construction 

sufficient to meet the regional growth target of at least 5,045 additional housing 

units by 2044. (Revised 3.1.1) 

3.1.2 Identify and remove excessive regulatory barriers to housing production. (Revised 

3.1.2) 

3.1.3  Modify residential zoning designations and development standards to align with 

city goals, and periodically assess the amount of housing produced under these 

standards. (New policy) 

3.1.4 Encourage housing growth near major transit stops, especially high-capacity 

transit nodes and in Southcenter/Tukwila Urban Center. (New Policy) 

3.1.5 Align development regulations to market conditions to reduce reliance on time- 

and funding-intensive development agreements. (New Policy) 

9



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

GOAL 3.2 – Promote safe, healthy, and affordable housing choices 

for residents of all income levels. (Revised 3.2)  

3.2.1 Encourage production in all neighborhoods of diverse housing types that are 

appropriate for residents in all stages of life and all household sizes. (Revised 

3.2.1) 

3.2.2  Encourage housing development affordable to all income segments sufficient to 

meet needs consistent with adopted targets. 

3.2.3 Encourage the creation of housing for different income levels in residential areas 

throughout the city (Revised 3.2.2). 

3.2.4 Support the development of emergency housing, emergency shelters, and 

permanent supportive housing sufficient to meet adopted targets, and ensure 

that City regulations guiding such development are consistent with state and 

regional guidance. (Revised 3.2.3)  

3.2.5 Support siting of transitional housing and permanent supportive housing in any 

zones in which residential dwelling units or hotels are allowed, and siting of 

indoor emergency shelters and indoor emergency housing in any zone where 

hotels are allowed in accordance with state law. (New Policy)  

3.2.6 Expand capacity for moderate density housing, i.e., “missing middle housing”, in 

residential areas with low-density zoning throughout the city to increase home 

ownership and rental housing options. (New Policy) 

3.2.7 Work with the owners and managers of Tukwila’s new and existing permanent or 

long-term low-income housing to maximize housing desirability, protect long-

term affordability, and strengthen community connections. (Revised 3.2.4) 

3.2.8 Strive to make alternative and affordable housing options available for residents 

currently living in substandard housing, such as pre-HUD code mobile homes. 

(No change; formerly 3.2.6) 

3.2.9 Encourage housing design that improves resilience in the face of climate-change 

driven extreme weather events, such as flooding and extreme heat. (New policy) 

Implementation Strategies - Goals 3.1 and 3.2 
• Update zoning to allow at least two detached accessory dwelling units in Low-Density 

Residential zones.  

• Update Low-Density Residential zones to allow at least two units per lot and allow for 

middle housing building types. 

• Reduce residential parking requirements around transit, current and future growth 

centers like Tukwila International Boulevard (TIB) District, and other public amenities 

where denser housing is desired. 

10



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

• Ensure zoning rules allow transitional housing and permanent housing in all areas where 

dwelling units or hotels are permitted, as required by state law.  

• Ensure zoning rules allow indoor emergency shelter and indoor emergency housing in all 

areas where hotels are permitted, as required by state law. 

• Explore developing a similar limited demonstration projects program for innovative 

housing types that accommodate multigenerational and immigrant household family 

structures not allowed under current zoning. (See Policy 3.5.7 below) 

• Establish and maintain a 12-year multifamily tax exemption (MFTE) program throughout 

different areas of the City. 

• Increase maximum heights throughout zones allowing residential use. 

• Remove upper floor step-backs in Medium-Density and High-Density Residential zones 

to reduce barriers to new construction. 

• Adjust recreation space requirements in residential zones to reduce barriers to new 

construction. 

• Review and consider building code changes and align them with zoning code updates. 

• Significantly increase building capacity in areas supported by transit, in proximity to 

high-employment areas, and in proximity to other public amenities. 

• Identify specific publicly-owned land for affordable housing development. 

• Explore acquiring property to land bank (acquiring land and holding it for future 

development) for affordable housing. 

• Develop affordable housing density bonuses or development code for faith-based 

institutions/religious organizations that want to build affordable housing on their 

property. 

• Remove or reduce impact fees for affordable housing projects.  

• Transition the municipal code to a searchable, online platform to increase transparency 

and accessibility, and align with industry best practices. 

• Create and hire a South King County Housing and Neighborhood Planner position to 

work collaboratively with the Planning, Code Enforcement, and Human Services 

Divisions. This position would aid in the achievement of identified housing needs. 

Responsibilities could include pursuing and overseeing grant opportunities, developing 

relationships with for-profit and non-profit stakeholders for City and regional affordable 

housing development, increasing representation in regional efforts to fund affordable 

housing, supporting land use and rental housing programs to improve the condition of 

affordable housing for Tukwila’s residents, and exploring establishing a neighborhood 

council/liaison program. 

Sidebar: RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION PROGRAM 

Implemented in 2011, the Tukwila Residential Rental Licensing and Inspection Program requires 

all rental unit owners to obtain an annual residential rental business license and complete an 

inspection every four years. The inspection may be conducted by a City inspector or a pre-

11



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

approved private inspector. Rental units must meet code standards, and violations must be 

addressed within 30 days. The program seeks to improve substandard and unsanitary residential 

buildings that do not meet State and local housing and technical codes. 

As of November 2023, 114 rental licenses (895 rental units) were due for inspection; in 2024, 180 

rental licenses (1,570 units) are due.  

GOAL 3.3 - Support collaborative efforts with other jurisdictions and 

organizations to assess housing needs, coordinate funding, and 

preserve and create affordable housing opportunities. 

3.3.1 Support the equitable distribution of regional funds, such as Community 

Development Block Grants, interlocal-agreement sales taxes revenue, and other 

federal, State and County funding, for needed affordable housing. (Revised 3.3.1) 

3.3.2 Play an active role in regional efforts to meet the needs of low-income 

community members, including monitoring of housing needs and updating city 

policies and regulations to align with regional goals. (Revised 3.3.2; removed 

preservation clause)  

3.3.3 Continue to work closely with South King Housing and Homelessness Partnership 

(SKHHP) and other partners to achieve development of subsidized affordable 

housing for very low-, low- and moderate-income households. (Revised 3.3.3) 

GOAL 3.4 – Limit displacement impacts to vulnerable and historically 

underserved populations.  

3.4.1 Identify and take action to remove City policies, rules, and programs that 

exacerbate racially disparate impacts. (New policy) 

3.4.2 Develop and implement strategies to reduce displacement of low-income 

households in areas of redevelopment. (Relocated and revised 3.2.5) 

3.4.3 Evaluate City actions for potential to increase displacement risk for naturally 

occurring affordable housing and vulnerable communities and mitigate or avoid 

taking actions that significantly increase this risk. (New policy) 

3.4.4 Support the long-term preservation of existing naturally occurring affordable 

housing developments by acting as a facilitator between affordable housing 

groups interested in purchasing units and property owners. (Relocated and 

revised 3.2.7) 

3.4.5  Continue to improve the condition of rental housing through administration of 

the Residential Rental Licensing and Inspection Program. (Relocated 3.4.1) 

12



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

3.4.6 Continue to support the maintenance, weatherization, rehabilitation, and long-

term preservation or replacement of existing housing for low- and moderate-

income residents. (Relocated 3.4.2, also covers 7.5.8) 

3.4.7 Continue to develop relationships with populations that have been historically 

underserved and are at risk of displacement to better understand needs and risks. 

(Relocated and revised 3.5.3) 

3.4.8 Support programs and City actions that increase homeownership opportunities 

for vulnerable populations. (New policy) 

3.4.9 Adopt renter protections to ensure stable housing for Tukwila Renters. 

Sidebar: MINOR HOME REPAIR PROGRAM 

The City administers the Minor Home Repair Program, which provides and promotes the repair 

and maintenance of housing for low- and moderate- income homeowners. The program is 

funded through a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). The City receives 

approximately $25,000 in annual funding. 

This program is a valuable resource for residents, however Tukwila Human Services estimates 

the program meets a fraction of the existing need for home repair and maintenance. Additional 

funding and partnerships can help to improve the look and quality of housing throughout the 

City. 

Implementation Strategies - Goals 3.3 and 3.4 
• Establish an equity review process of proposed zoning changes that assesses potential 

benefits compared to displacement risks and environmental justice concerns.Address 

policies and programs that result in racially disparate impacts as identified in the housing 

background report, including over reliance on single-family zoning, overly subjective 

design guidelines, and inequitable distribution of infrastructure for safe walking 

conditions.  

• Monitor naturally occurring affordable housing and housing with expiring affordability 

requirements for potential sales and opportunities to preserve affordability. 

• Partner with non-profit organizations and for-profit developers to acquire, rehabilitate, 

construct, preserve and maintain permanent affordable housing and support services. 

• Review siting decisions for city facilities to avoid displacement of cultural anchors such as 

businesses and churches that serve vulnerable communities. 

• Develop mechanisms for enforcing the International Property Maintenance Code. 

• Continue investing in the Residential Rental Licensing and Inspection Program and 

engage with inspectors, property owners, and tenants to incrementally improve the 

program. 

• Use the Rental Housing Inspection Program to encourage rehabilitation and 

weatherization programs for rental units. 

13



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

• Work with neighbor jurisdictions to establish a revolving loan fund for development or 

preservation of affordable housing. 

• Explore adoption and enforcement of the National Healthy Housing Standard through 

the Rental Housing Inspection Program. 

• Educate property owners about available resources they can access to improve their 

rental housing. 

• Explore strategies like a Housing Trust Fund to provide assistance to low-income 

homeowners for connecting to sewer service. 

• Establish City/Department wide outreach program to engage with, collaborate with, and 

work to build capacity of organizations that work with diverse and historically 

underserved populations. 

• Increase funding for the minor home repair program to serve more households per year. 

• Encourage Council consideration of renter protections. 

GOAL 3.5 – Promote housing options that support personal fulfillment 

and a healthy social life and are appropriate for people in all 

stages of life. 

3.5.1 Encourage development of housing that is appropriate for multi-generational 

families, including the development of accessory dwelling units (ADUs), middle 

housing, and family-sized apartments. (New policy) 

3.5.2  Review and update development code to support production of housing types 

that provide relatively affordable homeownership options, such as middle 

housing (including townhouses) and condominiums. (New policy) 

3.5.3 Encourage use of universal design principles in new housing development. 

(Revised 3.5.1) 

3.5.4 Assist in providing residents with the human services, economic development, 

and transportation needed to increase access to housing options. (Relocated and 

revised 3.5.2) 

3.5.5 Support community groups that actively work to improve neighborhood quality 

and strengthen sense of community. (Relocated and revised 3.6.3, also covers 

7.5.1) 

3.5.6 Encourage site and building design that helps reduce social isolation and 

supports active lifestyles. (New policy) 

3.5.7 Support the creation of co-housing, housing cooperatives, co-living buildings, 

and other types of housing that provide community-oriented housing 

alternatives for families, seniors, young singles, religious communities, or other 

groups with specific needs. (New policy)   

14



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

Sidebar: Family-sized housing 

Family-sized, family-friendly housing units contain at least two bedrooms and include features 

such as areas where family members can gather for meals and other activities, sufficient storage 

space, a spot for children to do homework, and easy access to outdoor play and recreation 

space. Due to various factors related to building design, market demand, and building code 

stipulations, apartment buildings are rarely constructed with family-sized units with more than 

two bedrooms and associated spaces. While these elements are historically available in single 

family detached homes, middle housing types of development, such as duplexes and 

townhomes, can be well-suited to providing more spacious family-sized housing. Encouraging 

new family-sized housing in areas with access to transit and proximity to schools, parks, low-

traffic streets, and other family-friendly elements will make it easier for families to find their 

home in Tukwila. 

  

Implementation Strategies - Goal 3.5 
• Encourage and help market private and public assistance and education programs for 

first-time homebuyers. 

• Develop small neighborhood grants for cleanup and community-building events. 

• Explore creating and supporting a neighborhood liaison program to help develop 

neighborhood associations. 

• Develop relationships with existing homeowner and neighborhood associations. 

• Include shared public spaces in new public buildings in neighborhoods that allow 

neighborhood gatherings. 

• Work with school districts serving Tukwila students to help identify resources for families 

with children experiencing homelessness. 

• When updating design standards for higher density housing include design strategies 

that encourage healthy social interaction, such as porches, street-oriented buildings, and 

small clusters of units with shared semiprivate open space. 

• Encourage senior housing developers to employ universal design principles 

15



11/22/2023 
  

DRAFT Housing Element 
 

Sidebar: What is Universal Design? 

Universal design is an approach to designing buildings, 

products, and the built environment to be easily usable by the 

broadest possible range of people, regardless of age or ability. 

The approach centers convenience and accessibility for the 

benefits of all users. 

As the population changes over time, family structures gradually 

transform as well. Many homes are designed around the concept 

of the nuclear family, typically two adults tied by partnership or 

marriage, with their minor children. This arrangement once 

represented a majority of households. Today there is a wider 

variety of households than in the mid-twentieth century; for 

example, adults living without children, single adults, and 

multigenerational families. Universal design helps to support 

aging in place and multigenerational families by applying design principles that emphasize 

flexibility, intuitive design, and variations in size and space for different users (Center for 

Excellence in Universal Design). One example is a home that includes wide hallways and 

doorways to ease wheelchair user navigation, tiered or height-adjustable countertops to 

accommodate more than one height, and a bathroom shower that is spacious and flush with the 

floor. Through home modifications or retrofitting, barriers that limit a home’s accessibility can 

be eliminated, and families can be better prepared for a lifetime of changing needs.  

Resources 
• Housing Background Report 

• Tukwila Transit Oriented Development Housing Action Plan 2020 

• Puget Sound Regional Council VISION 2050 

• King County Countywide Planning Policies 2021 

• Regional South King County Housing Action Framework 2020: 

o Housing Strategies Framework 

o Housing Context Assessment Methods 

o Housing Policy Assessment 

• Regional Affordable Housing Task Force 2018 Report 

• Tukwila 2012 Strategic Plan 

 

 

 

16

https://universaldesign.ie/what-is-universal-design/the-7-principles/
https://universaldesign.ie/what-is-universal-design/the-7-principles/
https://www.tukwilawa.gov/departments/community-development/community-planning/transit-oriented-development-housing-action-plan/
https://www.psrc.org/planning-2050/vision-2050
https://kingcounty.gov/en/legacy/depts/executive/performance-strategy-budget/regional-planning/-/media/depts/executive/performance-strategy-budget/regional-planning/CPPs/2021_CPPs-Adopted_and_Ratified.ashx?la=en&hash=E23EC8BAFF1C93916893CC2AFB3906CE
https://www.tukwilawa.gov/wp-content/uploads/DCD-TODHAP-Housing-Strategies-Framework.pdf
https://www.tukwilawa.gov/wp-content/uploads/DCD-TODHAP-Housing-Context-Assessment-Methods.pdf
https://www.tukwilawa.gov/wp-content/uploads/DCD-TODHAP-Housing-Policy-Assessment.pdf
https://kingcounty.gov/~/media/initiatives/affordablehousing/documents/report/RAH_Report_Final.ashx?
https://www.tukwilawa.gov/departments/mayors-office/key-city-plans-and-projects/2012-strategic-plan-update/


17



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18

Wynetta
Text Box

Wynetta
Text Box
Attachment B



• , 

• 

• 
. 

HOUSING 
 

 
 

 

PURPOSE 

19

http://records.tukwilawa.gov/WebLink8/1/doc/57251/Electronic.aspx
http://forterra.org/editorial/tukwilas-community-conversation-convening-communities-to-build-a-vision
http://www.tukwilawa.gov/wp-content/uploads/DCD-CompPlan-2015-Housing-Background-Report.pdf


Total housing expenditures in excess of 30% of 
household income is considered“excessive” and 

viewed as an indicator of a housing affordability 

problem. This definition of affordability was 

established under the United States National 

Housing Act of 1937. 

Average housing costs in Tukwila – $1,191 for 

monthly rent or $992 for monthly housing 

payments for a three-bedroom unit – are 

affordable to households making at least 50-80% 

AMI, about $33,120 annually or $16.56 per hour. 

Many of the common occupations in Tukwila pay 

less than $16.56 per hour; these include cashiers, 

$13.55; childcare workers, $11.59; food service 

workers, $12.25; and retail salesperson: $15.28. 

Occupations that provide a wage needed to 

afford market rate housing include bookkeeping 

clerk, $20.53; medical assistant, $18.75; 

machinist, $25.82; and painter, $19.86. 

(Washington State Employment 

Security Department, 2013) 

ISSUES 

(see the Housing Background 

Report for more information)

20



King County’s Countywide Planning Policies recognize there is an unmet need 

for housing that is affordable to households earning less than 80% area median 

income (AMI), with the greatest need for households earning 50% or less of the 

AMI. According to the Countrywide Planning Policies, the Countywide need for 

housing by percentage of AMI is: 

50–80% AMI (moderate income) .................. 16% of total housing supply 

30–50% AMI (low income).............................. 12% of total housing supply 

Less than 30% AMI (very low income) ......... 12% of total housing supply 

21



The Puget Sound Regional Council – the 

regional planning organization that develops 

growth projections – estimates that Tukwila 

will need 4,800 new homes by 2031, and a 

total of 5,568 new homes by 2035. Historically, 

there has been a large gap between the City’s 

growth target and number of housing units 

constructed. Since the last Comprehensive 

Plan update, the City adopted a new plan and 

development regulations for its Southcenter 

urban center, and new development regulations 

in the City’s redevelopment area on Tukwila 

International Boulevard. Over the next five 

years, approved projects in these two areas are 

expected to create over 700 new housing units. 

This development activity suggests the City will 

make substantial progress toward meeting the 

housing target of 2035. 

GOALS, POLICIES AND 
STRATEGIES 

The City of Tukwila provides the City’s fair share 

of regional housing. 

 

 

 

Implementation Strategies 

n 

n 

22



The City of Tukwila has safe, healthy and 

affordable homes for all residents in Tukwila. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



Implementation Strategies 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

24



The City of Tukwila supports and collaborates with other jurisdictions 

and organizations to assess housing needs, coordinate funding, and 

preserve and create affordable housing opportunities. 

n 

n 

 

 

 

25



Implemented in 2011, the Residential Rental 

Licensing and Inspection Program requires 

all rental unit owners to obtain an annual 

residential rental business license and complete 

an inspection every four years. Rental units 

must meet code standards, and violations must 

be addressed within 30 days. The program 

seeks to improve substandard and unsanitary 

residential buildings that do not meet State 

and local housing and technical codes. 

The end of 2014 marked the completion of 

the first four-year cycle of inspections, meaning 

that inspections were completed for rentals 

in each quadrant of the City. A total of 3,641 

inspections were conducted during this period, 

148 of which failed and were brought into 

compliance to pass a subsequent inspection. 

Implementation Strategies 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

The City of Tukwila has an improved and continually 

improving housing stock in support of enhanced 

neighborhood quality. 

 

 

 

26



The City of Tukwila includes a full range of housing for persons 

in all stages of life and for all members of our community. 

Implementation Strategies 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

 

 

 

The City administers the Minor Home Repair Program, which provides and 

promotes the repair and maintenance of housing for low- and moderate- 

income homeowners. The program is funded through a Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG). The City receives approximately $25,000 

in annual funding, and 20–25 homeowners use the program every year. 

While this program is a great resource for residents, Tukwila Human Services 

estimates the program only meets about 10% of existing need for home repair 

and maintenance. Additional funding and partnerships can help to improve 

the look and quality of housing throughout the City. 

27



Increase long-term residency in the City. 

Implementation Strategies 

n 

n 

n 

 

 

 

 

Implementation Strategies 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

28



A city that is good for children is good for all. 

Family-sized, family-friendly housing units 

contain more than two bedrooms and include 

features critical for families, such as areas 

where family members can gather for meals 

and other activities, sufficient storage space, 

a spot for children to do homework , and easy 

access to outdoor play and recreations space. 

Many types of low-density housing, such as 

cottage or clustered housing and duplexes, 

provide compatible, attractive and affordable 

alternatives to traditional single-family homes. 

Allowing a broader mix of housing in single- 

family neighborhoods – with access to transit 

and proximity to schools, parks, and other child- 

oriented infrastructure – can enable and attract 

a larger number of families with a wider range 

of incomes to live in Tukwila. 

n 

n 

n 

n 

n 

29



30

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/housing-needs-assessment/
https://www.psrc.org/vision-2040-documents
http://www.tukwilawa.gov/wp-content/uploads/DCD-CompPlan-2012-Countywide-Planning-Policies.pdf
http://records.tukwilawa.gov/WebLink8/1/doc/57251/Electronic.aspx
http://forterra.org/editorial/tukwilas-community-conversation-convening-communities-to-build-a-vision
http://www.tukwilawa.gov/wp-content/uploads/DCD-CompPlan-2015-Housing-Background-Report.pdf


31



 
 

 

TO:  Tukwila Planning Commission 

FROM:  Nora Gierloff, AICP, DCD Director 

BY:  Nancy Eklund, AICP & Neil Tabor, AICP 

DATE: November 9, 2023    

SUBJECT: Bylaw Amendment: Modification of Term End Dates – Info Memo 
 
 
ISSUE 
Should the Planning Commission amend its bylaws to correspond with the City Council-adopted 
revisions to TMC 2.36.020, which extended the terms of Planning Commission members from 
December 31 to March 31? 
 
BACKGROUND 

The Tukwila City Council adopted Ordinance 2713, which went into effect on November 14, 
2023.  This ordinance extended the Planning Commissioners term end from December 31st to 
March 31st.  This change necessitates an amendment to the Planning Commission bylaws to 
allow the selection of Officers to occur in the first meeting following March 31, 2024, the new 
end-of-term date.    
 
The change would also modify the date of the transition of Planning Commission leadership 
from the first meeting in January to the first meeting in April. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt an amendment to the bylaws as shown 
in the excerpt that follows.  The change proposed is in Article IV; the other text is provided for 
context. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
I move that Article Four of the Planning Commission bylaws be changed to reference April 
rather than January as the date for the designation of officers and start of their terms. 
 

  

32



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Bylaw Amendment: Modification of Term End Dates – Info Memo 
November 9, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Planning Commission Bylaws 
 

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP 

 

Per TMC 2.36.020, the Commission shall be composed of seven members and shall include six 

community members representing a cross section of the community from different trades, 

occupations, activities and geographical areas and one member representing a business operating 

in the City. 

 

A. Length of Appointment 

The term of membership for the members of the Tukwila Planning Commission shall be 

four years. 

 

B. Resignation 

If a Commission member is unable to complete their term of service a letter of 

resignation should be sent to the Mayor indicating the effective date of the resignation. 

 

C. Removal 

Commission members may be removed from the position if absent without being excused 

for three consecutive meetings or six regular meetings in a calendar year. 

 

D. Compensation 

Members receive no monetary compensation for serving on the Commission. 

 

 
ARTICLE III - DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION, OFFICERS, COMMISSIONERS AND 

SUPPORT STAFF 

 

A. Duties of Commission 

The Commission shall undertake the duties and responsibilities defined in TMC 2.32.010 

 

B. Officers 

Officers shall be a Chair and a Vice-Chair; both appointed members of the Commission. 

In absence of both the Chair and the Vice-Chair members shall elect a Chair pro tem.  

 

C. Duties of the Officers 

Chair 

The Chair shall preside at all meetings and adhere to the duties of the presiding officer 

prescribed in Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised. When necessary, the Chair shall 

call for special meetings. The Chair shall be a full voting member of the Commission. 

The Chair may delegate duties to other Commissioners with the consent of the 

Commission. The Chair shall speak on behalf of the Commission before City Council, 

the public and City staff.  

33



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Bylaw Amendment: Modification of Term End Dates – Info Memo 
November 9, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

The Chair will serve as a member on the City’s Board of Ethics.  In the event the Chair is 

unable or unwilling to serve on the Board of Ethics, the Commission shall select a 

member to serve on the Board. 

 

The responsibilities of the Chair include: 

• Providing group direction and options for setting goals; 

• Coordinating with staff to set meeting agendas; 

• Coordinating meeting preparation with City staff; and 

• Representing the Commission in the community. 

 

The term of office shall be one year.  

 

Vice-Chair 

The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in absence of the Chair. The Vice-

Chair may also speak on behalf of the Commission before City Council, the public and 

City staff when the Chair is not available to speak. 

 

The term of office shall be one year. The Vice-Chair will promote to the Chair the 

following year. 

 

…. 

 

ARTICLE IV – DESIGNATION OF OFFICERS 

.   

The Commission shall make a motion to designate a Chair and a Vice Chair to serve for one 

year. Designations are based on longevity of service on the commission and will rotate through 

all of the members before a member serves an additional term. Generally, officers shall be 

designated and take office annually at the first regular public meeting of the Commission in 

JanuaryApril. The first item of new business shall be the designation of the officers and they will 

assume their duties at that time. 

 

The Vice-Chair from the previous year will be designated as Chair and the next member 

in line of seniority will be designated as the Vice-Chair. 

 

Should the Chair be vacated prior to the completion of the Term, the Vice-Chair will assume the 

duties and responsibilities of the Chair for the remainder of the Term. The next member in line of 

seniority will then be designated as the new Vice-Chair to serve out the remainder of the Term. 

 

Should the Vice-Chair be vacated prior to the completion of the Term, the Chair will designate 

the next member in line of seniority as the new Vice-Chair to serve out the remainder of the 

Term. 

 

34


